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Appendix A 

 
Questions Received on the RFI Reference 

Number LSO – RFI – FLSP012020 
 

Submission 1: 
1. I am hoping that you can provide clarification for me on an element of the RFI issued by the Law 

Society of Ontario for the Family Legal Services Provider License Training Program. Under the 
“Program Requirements” in section 3 of the RFI instructions, it lists the 11 proposed courses and 
identifies the number of competencies associated with each course. However, I cannot find in 
the Consultation Paper where which competencies are found in each course is identified. For 
example, the “Family Legal Services Introduction and Overview” course is to cover 29 
competencies but I cannot find which of the 209 total competencies are the 29 that must be 
addressed in that course. 

Law Society Response: 

Attached as Appendix “B” is a table of each proposed course which includes the related competencies. 
The Law Society recognizes that there may be overlap between courses and competencies. Accordingly, 
the competencies relevant to multiple courses have been assigned to only one course in Appendix “B”. 
In a formative learning environment, competency fulfillment is approached iteratively and repetition of 
key concepts over several courses may be required to solidify knowledge and skills. For instance, an 
understanding of financial disclosure is necessary to support family legal services in the areas of 
property, child, and spousal support and courses will need to be sequenced accordingly. The assignment 
of competencies to the courses is intended as a guide only. 
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Submission 2: 
1. While reviewing the RFI, there seems to be a minor linking error in the following consultation 

document: 
https://lawsocietyontario.azureedge.net/media/lso/media/about/convocation/2020/flsp-
consultation.pdf  No links have been included in the Chart in Appendix ‘D’ (p. 1 & 2).  The 
Courses and subtopics listed in the Chart have (#’s) that reference back to the competencies in 
Appendix ‘C’, but do not identify or link to the related competencies.  For instance: 

Family Legal Services Introduction and Overview - Introduction/Overview/Knowledge of Law 
(11) - what are the 11 identified related competencies? 

Divorce (9)  

Prohibitions (9) 

Assuming this was not intentional (since the curriculum is impacted by this), I wanted to alert 
you so that an addenda could be posted.   

Law Society Response: 

Please see Appendix “B”, which is a table of each proposed course with the related competencies listed. 
As discussed above, the assignment of competencies to courses is intended as a guide only. 

 

Submission 3: 
1. Are the number of hours per course listed in Appendix D of the RFI negotiable? [Right now, 

based on their numbers, it would take 2-3 years to complete the program part-time --it is a total 
of 550 hours plus a Field Placement component.]  

Law Society Response: 

It is estimated the training program will be a minimum of six to eight months on a fulltime basis (20 
instructional hours per week) or one year on a part-time basis (10 instructional hours per week). 
However, the duration and structure of the training program would be fully determined in conjunction 
with the selected education provider(s). 

 

2. Is the LSO willing to consider the possibility of a Remote Learning option?   

Law Society Response: 

The Law Society is open to new ideas for how to best support a training program to fulfill the required 
competencies which form the basis of the proposed FLSP licence. Education providers are encouraged to 
submit proposals for innovative learning options. 

https://clicktime.symantec.com/3CJiPABddMD3Z8HXwXGfx627Vc?u=https%3A%2F%2Flawsocietyontario.azureedge.net%2Fmedia%2Flso%2Fmedia%2Fabout%2Fconvocation%2F2020%2Fflsp-consultation.pdf
https://clicktime.symantec.com/3CJiPABddMD3Z8HXwXGfx627Vc?u=https%3A%2F%2Flawsocietyontario.azureedge.net%2Fmedia%2Flso%2Fmedia%2Fabout%2Fconvocation%2F2020%2Fflsp-consultation.pdf
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3. In Appendix D of the RFI, Competencies have been listed with each subject matter. Can the 
Competencies be moved [but not deleted] into other courses [i.e., for logistical purposes of 
configuring a FLSP with class and lab availability within the academic institution]     

Law Society Response: 

Yes. The assignment of competencies to the courses in Appendix “B” to this addendum is intended as a 
guide only. Please see the answer to the first submission for additional information. 

 

4. Can we utilize our Law Clerk instructors, who currently teach law clerk students the procedural 
and lab components of Family Law for some of the lab components of a FLSP? 

Law Society Response: 

The Law Society is open to hearing the education provider’s criteria for faculty selection, keeping in 
mind that faculty must have teaching experience and practice experience in family law. 

 

Submission 4: 
General Questions 

1. Is a provider required to provide training in English and French? 

Law Society Response: 

The Law Society is interested in receiving proposals for training in English and in French. The Law Society 
is open to having more than one education provider or separate providers for the English and French 
training program, provided the required competencies are covered in the curriculum. 

 

2. What is the anticipated start/launch date of the FLSP program? 

Law Society Response: 

At present, the anticipated launch date of the FLSP program is unknown. The Law Society will carefully 
review and consider the various submissions received in response to the Access to Justice Committee’s 
Call for Comment on the proposed model.   
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3. What is the LSO estimating will be the anticipated demand over the next five (5) years? 

Law Society Response: 

The Law Society is currently engaging in research to gauge the level of interest in this proposed model of 
the family legal services provider licence. 

 

4. When submitting the final RFI, must a hard copy be sent to the LSO? Or, are electronic versions 
acceptable. (NOTE: multiple options re: consultation submissions have been noted, but not for 
the RFI) 

Law Society Response: 

Electronic submissions are acceptable when responding to the RFI.  Responses may be submitted by e-
mail to submissions@lso.ca, or hand delivered or mailed to the address below. Responses should be 
clearly marked with RFI Reference Number LSO-RFI-FLSP012020.  

Family Legal Services Provider Consultation 
Law Society of Ontario 
130 Queen St. W. 
Toronto, ON  M5H 2N6 

 

5. Appendix D of the RFI requires all proposals to provide information on “how the cost of 
delivering the program will be determined?” Are you asking for a listing of general 
considerations/factors that will affect costs, or is a detailed estimate required? 

Law Society Response: 

The Law Society is requesting a break-down of the proposed costs for the program as they relate to the 
potential fee for the training program for FLSP candidates. 

 

Questions re: Curriculum 

1. Do ‘instructional hours’ include the total learning hours that students will commit to the course 
(including self-study/class preparation) or is it only ‘instructional/class time’? 

Law Society Response: 

The proposed mandatory hours are instructional/class time only. 

 
 

mailto:submissions@lso.ca


 

5 
 

 
2. Do the providers have the flexibility to modify the proposed courses and redistribute 

competencies differently than what was proposed? 

Law Society Response: 

Yes. The assignment of competencies to courses in Appendix “B” is intended to serve as a guide only. 
Please see the response to submission number one for additional information. 

a. If no, Appendix D of the RFI lists proposed courses with subtopics and competency 
counts. In reviewing the competencies associated with each subtopic, OPD found that in 
some cases, the competency counts were different than those indicated in Appendix D 
(refer to Appendix ‘2’). Please clarify the content for each proposed course by listing the 
competencies for each course by competency code. If the LSO revises the competency 
counts, please indicate whether the revision affects the minimum instructional hours 
specified in Appendix D. 

Law Society Response: 

The Law Society recognizes that there will be overlap between competencies and courses. The 
competencies were assigned to one course only. Please see the answer to submission number one for 
additional information. 
 

3. Has the LSO contemplated offering any counselling support to candidates during the training 
program? Develop guidelines for student well-being? Or, will this be up to the individual 
provider(s) to support? 

Law Society Response: 

The training program is intended to be a stand-alone program supported by the education provider. The 
Law Society will principally provide guidance to the education provider on program requirements. As 
with the Law Practice Program, counselling and tutoring services for candidates are to be provided by 
the education providers through programs and supports within the provider’s infrastructure. It is 
anticipated that, like other candidates, FLSP candidates will have access to the Member Assistance Plan 
(MAP) which is funded by the Law Society. MAP provides secure, single sign-on or telephone access to 
counselling, coaching, online resources and peer volunteers. 

The Law Society expects that the education providers will accommodate candidates in accordance with 
their internal policies and with the Human Right Code.  
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Questions re: Placements 

1. What types of legal services/employers will be qualified to offer placements? 

Law Society Response: 

The Law Society contemplates that a field placement may be offered in a variety of legal settings 
including law firms, courts, legal clinics, community organizations, etc., provided that the setting is able 
to provide practical training in family law and support the required competencies to obtain the licence. 
 

2. What type of work will be permitted and/or required for the successful completion of a 
placement? 

Law Society Response: 

The ability to serve clients, prepare court documents, advocate and negotiate on behalf of a client, 
manage a legal services practice, and address ethical and professional responsibility obligations are 
examples of competency areas that may be facilitated through experiential training or practical work 
experience. 

 
3. Is there a mandatory length of placements? Must these be completed after the training 

program? 

Law Society Response: 

The proposed model for the licence contemplates a field placement of two to three months to 
complement the instructional component of the training program. The field placement may occur during 
or after the training program. It is within the education provider’s discretion of how best to incorporate 
the field placement. 

 

4. Does the placement have to be completed with one ‘employer’, or is there an option to split the 
placement amongst different supervisors (akin to shared articles/secondments)? 

Law Society Response: 

The Law Society is open to new ideas for how best to support experiential training or practical work 
experience. 
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5. Are there mandatory roles within the placement, and what are they? For instance, who would 
qualify as a ‘supervisor’ for students? 

Law Society Response: 

The Law Society will develop guidelines that establish the qualifications to be a field placement, 
similar to the eligibility criteria for supervisors of field placements in accredited paralegal 
education programs, articling principals, and work placement supervisors for the Law Practice 
Program for lawyer licensing candidates. The education provider would be responsible for 
ensuring that supervisors meet the required criteria.  
 
 

6. Will the LSO provide placement policies to provider(s)? For instance, health and safety and 
harassment policies? Will the LSO have counselling and guidance available for candidates? Or, 
will this be up to the provider(s) to monitor and draft? 

Law Society Response: 

It is anticipated that the education institution will create and monitor policies, with the Law Society’s 
approval, related to the field placements with a view to best supporting the candidates’ experience. The 
policies must be consistent with the Law Society’s Rules of Professional Conduct, By-Laws, policies, and 
requirements as they pertain to lawyer licensing candidates and paralegal licensing candidates. In 
addition, the Law Society provides the Law Society provides a Discrimination and Harassment Counsel 
(DHC) service free-of-charge to the Ontario public, lawyers and paralegals. The DHC assists anyone who 
may have experienced discrimination or harassment based on human rights grounds, by a lawyer, 
paralegal, or articling student. 

 

7. Will the LSO provide training to those ‘supervising’/hosting placements? Or, will this be up to 
the individual provider(s)? 

Law Society Response: 

The training program is intended to be a stand-alone program supported by the education provider. As 
such, the education institution would be responsible for training and monitoring the supervisors of any 
field placements. The Law Society will develop guidelines that establish the qualifications to be a 
supervisor, similar to the eligibility criteria for supervisors of field placements in accredited paralegal 
education programs, articling principals, and work placement supervisors for the Law Practice Program 
for lawyer licensing candidates.  
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8. Will the LSO provide ongoing monitoring regarding the quality of workplace supervision and 

quality of work given to and completed by students? If so, what is the anticipated process? 

Law Society Response: 

The education institution will be responsible for monitoring the qualify of workplace supervision and 
quality of work given to and completed by students. The work must support the required competencies.  

If a candidate requires remediation or assistance during a field placement, the candidate will be 
expected to work with the field placement supervisor and the education provider. If a candidate is not 
successful in the program/field placement, the candidate will be expected to work with the education 
provider to remediate the issue. However, the Law Society may have the ability to conduct program 
audits or checks which could include a check of the field placement. A clause to this effect may be 
included in the contract with the education provider(s).  

 

9. What is the anticipated dispute resolution process mechanism for conduct and performance 
issues that arise during placements? Who will be responsible for administering this? 

Law Society Response: 

The education institution will be responsible for dispute resolution mechanisms for conduct and 
performance issues that arise during placements. 

If a candidate requires remediation or assistance during a field placement, the candidate will be 
expected to work with the field placement supervisor and the education provider. If a candidate is not 
successful in the program/field placement, the candidate will be expected to work with the education 
provider to remediate the issue.  

The Law Society expects that the education and placement providers will accommodate candidates in 
accordance with their internal policies and with the Human Right Code.  

 

10. Is it the expectation that employers pay students who are participating in placements? Is there a 
minimum compensation level required (and if so, what is it)? Are non-paid placements an 
option? 

Law Society Response: 

The Law Society will not require employers or supervisors to pay students who are participating in 
placements as part of their fulfillment of course curriculum.  
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11. As more offices shift to remote environments, will remote work count towards placement 
hours? If not, what are the limitations? 

Law Society Response: 

The COVID-19 pandemic has provided opportunities for progress and innovation. The Law Society is 
open to new ideas for how to best support a training program that provides quality practical training 
and experiential learning. 

 

Submission 5 
1. We would like to inquire as to how much detail the Law Society is seeking in our responses. For 

instance, when you ask “how” the program would be designed and delivered we are not clear 
whether you are seeking a high-level comment on our instructional design principles, or 
something as granular as an example of a class syllabi? Similarly for the other “how” questions, 
our potential answer(s) could be at the level of principle (we would design, deliver, assess, 
provide, coordinate, and cost the program with care, attention to andragogical principles, and 
utmost fidelity to ensuring students’ competence in the required competencies) or at the level 
practical, for example (syllabi, instructors’ guides, sample exams, field placement assessments, 
and costs spreadsheets). 

Law Society Response: 

The Law Society is seeking information regarding design and delivery options for the program, the 
duration of the program, criteria for faculty selection, and the assessment requirements to ensure 
fulfillment of the required competencies for the FLSP licence. The level of detail each education provider 
choses to submit is within its own discretion. 
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